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PROCEEDINGS
MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  I want to welcome everyone for coming out and participating in this process.  The more people we have participating the more effective job that we will do, and the more in depth the discussions that we will have.  So this is very important, and we want to thank you for coming.  

We'll have an agenda review.  Does anybody have any additions, deletions to the agenda?

MS. PADGETT:  Loni Hancock, our local assemblywoman, will be here this evening.  And I would like to add her to the agenda after the Toxics Committee update.  So in between the Toxics Committee update and the status report we will have Loni Hancock.  And do we have announcements? 

MR. DOTSON:  Are there any other suggestions for the agenda?  Okay.  At this point I would like to have the CAG congratulate Gayle McLaughlin for her appointment.  I think there is a couple of technicalities that still haven't been worked out, but you have our support.  Congratulations. 

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  Thank you very much.  We really appreciate the support.   

MR. DOTSON:  Now we'll have the review and approval, if possible, of the minutes for October the 12th, 2006.

MS. ABBOTT:  I am a speed reader.

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to make a suggestion.  Given that we received the minutes this afternoon by e‑mail, and they are 80 pages, double‑spaced, I would like to suggest that we put off approval of the minutes to the next meeting.  And now that we ‑‑ looks like we may have a regular support from the meeting minutes service.  We can ask that the minutes be given to us two weeks before the next CAG meeting so that we can edit them and get them back to the service for the final draft to be approved at the next CAG meeting.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Second.

MS. PADGETT:  I just made a motion? 

MR. ALCAREZ:  So moved.

MR. DOTSON:  Any discussion?  All those in favor?  Opposed?  

Minutes passed.

MR. ROBINSON:  Whitney, I have a suggestion as far as the minutes are concerned to shorten them.  When we speak, if we give a truncated version of what we want to say for the benefit of our ‑‑ if when we speak we give a short one‑ or two‑line version of what it is we are saying so that that could go into a truncated version, and that way we don't have the novella that is in front of us now.  And it would be hard to get through this.  I don't know of any organization that has 70 pages of minutes.

MR. DOTSON:  Double‑spaced. 

MR. ROBINSON:  Just a suggestion.

MR. DOTSON:  Is there any discussion of that? 

MS. PADGETT:  I think maybe we could take that up in the administrative services meeting and try and figure out how we are going to get a truncated or summarized version of these minutes.  For the time being we can't expect our service to try to figure out how to shrink it.  I think it is going to take one of us to do it.  And I don't know whether we have a volunteer.  I hear what you are saying about trying to summarize and give her a few‑sentences later.  I don't know whether it is possible.  

MS. ABBOTT:  I am still recovering from a surgical procedure, so I can't really help yet.  But, you know, when I am better able to do that I wouldn't mind helping in some way to resolve this.  But I do want to remind the group that partly what we wanted here was someone who would take word‑for‑word minutes.  So just keep that in mind.  One thing I am thinking about is for corrections, maybe down the road, we could coordinate it through one person.

MR. DOTSON:  Any other comments?

MS. TILLMAN:  Yes.  I have a comment.  Once again, I think we are using valuable time to discuss something that maybe we should do on an individual basis or in a group basis.  And we need to be careful because you have to look at being in violation of someone's civil rights and free speech.  Thank you.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Any other comments?  Go ahead. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  One possible suggestion, after you read the minutes, if you have a correction or you would like to rephrase what you said, submit it in writing and have it incorporated into the next set of minutes so that we won't have to sit here and go through line by line but read it on your own, write a correction, and submit it and have the correction.

MR. DOTSON:  We'll take that into consideration.  Any announcements?

MR. ROBINSON:  I have one.  As long as congratulations were being meted out to our new mayor, I think we should also extend a hand of applause to Tarnel, who won the California Library Association Zoia Horn Intellectual Freedom Award.

MS. ABBOTT:  Thank you very much.  It is a great honor.

MR. DOTSON:  Could you tell us a little bit what it is about? 

MS. ABBOTT:  It is a very prestigious award in my field.  And it came about for work I did with a number of different projects I did at the Library, including a series of film and discussions with the A.C.L.U. around different very specific topics relating to civil rights.  I worked with our sister city in Cuba.  Some volunteer activities I did, one of which is the Librarians for Intellectual Freedom Film Series and helping to bring forward the measure in front of the City Council that ‑‑ around the Patriot Act and the parts of that that affect library use that are basically anti‑Constitutional.

MR. DOTSON:  I would like to add, Tarnel provided the North Richmond Shoreline Open Space Alliance with some very valuable information regarding the 1973 Shoreline coastline plan and some of the plans and decisions that were made relating to that which really facilitated some very progressive community‑based work.  So thank you.  Congratulations. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Thanks.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Any other announcements?  Okay.  Any discussion of anything at this point?  This is the discussion period.  Okay.  We'll move to the Toxics Committee update.  

MR. LINSLEY:  I believe this is on.  I am speaking tonight because Jean Rabovsky, the chair of the Toxics Committee, is out of town.  And at our last meeting I was elected to be the vice chair.  So I am standing in her place delivering a summary of our activities for the past month in the Toxics Committee, which she wrote.  

And so we have got a bunch of things that were in the packet that you received tonight.  One is the evidence of Uranium 238 release which Michael Esposito is going to speak to as soon as I introduce him in a few minutes.  So I won't go into that now.  Another is final minutes from the September meeting of the Toxics Committee.  Another is the analysis of the remediation for the contaminated sites at Zeneca, which was written by Gina Hagg.  And it has essentially been submitted already to DTSC in support of some of our other comments.  And then we have an initial Toxics Committee report on the remediation at the Zeneca site for a number of different special ‑‑ what are called volatile organic chemicals.  And this is full of a lot of details which I will allude to a little bit later.  

The next meeting of the Toxics Committee is going to take place next Thursday night the 16th.  And it will be at a new place, the Richmond City Hall, which is on Marina Way South, just past Hall Avenue.  In the complex there you have to sort of go into the back off of Hall Avenue of the building ‑‑ the building fronts on Marina Way South.  If you haven't been in it you have to circle on Hall, go in the parking lot in the back.  There is a back entrance.  We will have signs out as to which door the Toxics Committee will be through.  It will be unlocked so we have access to the Shimada Room.  And it is pretty much right inside that door and down a little ways.  

So that will start at 7:00 o'clock p.m. on Thursday the 16th.  And then we will meet again the same place before this group meets again on December 7th, which is another Thursday night.  And that will also be at 7:00 o'clock at the Shimada Room at Richmond City Hall.  So we have two meetings coming up before the next CAG meeting.  

So I am going to speak briefly to the report on radionuclides that was done by Michael Esposito.  And then he will speak to it himself after me.  And before he does speak, I am also going to address a little bit on the pilot study remediation site at Zeneca.  So on the radionuclides report, essentially we handed out last time an e‑mail from Wiess Associates to a subcontractor of theirs.  It shows the concern of poor quality of the uranium data was preventing an interpretation of the kind of results that they got.  So they needed more uranium data with better accuracy because they had to determine the ratio of uranium to radium to determine if the radiation is related to this site.  

So Dr. Esposito carried out a statistical analysis of the available data, so that in this packet that we had that is here tonight.  There is a little report that will explain that.  And he concluded that the data are consistent with the release of the Harbor Front tract site that is greater than the level at the Booker T. Anderson Park.  So he can go into more detail, so I won't take any questions on that.  

On the pilot studies on radiation we have a comment from Gina Hagg on the actual methods and the critique of the report that we received from the Toxics Committee.  We communicated, first of all, with Jean Rabovsky on the 21st of October with a rough outlay of our concerns.  But because we were under the gun to get comments in by October 31st, we put those in e‑mail on the 31st and U.S. mail on November the 1st.  And you got a copy of that in your packet too.  

And the concern that was voiced in our comments was essentially if the methods and approaches will apply to ensure any sort of adequate cleanup at this site, because there were a number of areas of concern.  One is the fact that Jean brought up last meeting, that the site is heterogenous; it is not uniform.  So anything that you put in the soil is not necessarily going to go everywhere equally and that contamination is already there underground.  It is also not spread evenly, so that the chances of the contamination and the thing that you are putting in to treat it meeting successfully in this sort of mix that is found under the ground there is unclear at this point.  

Another thing that we brought up was that one of the agents that they are going to use to clean up in these pilot studies is potassium permanganate.  Apparently you need to add so much to get adequate oxidation of the chemicals that it would be prohibitively difficult to get it all into the ground.  So we are thinking that since sodium permanganate requires much smaller volumes, that that might be a better alternative than potassium permanganate.  

Also there are pockets of the volatile chemicals that are meant to be treated by these methods, and with that site they somehow probably form these little, what we call immobile ganglia in the soil.  And they may not necessarily be in the ground water.  They may not be that easy to reach.  And those, then, may be missed by these pilot studies.  So we are not sure how that is going to come out.  

Another concern of the Toxics Committee on pilot studies was that insoluble metal forms can be converted to soluble metal forms under the oxidation in potassium permanganate solution.  So anyway, a thing like chromium, which is right now probably not in the most toxic form, can be converted into chromium six, which is a carcinogen, causes cancer of the lungs.  It is the thing that was in the movie Erin Brokovich.  It was a big concern with chromium six.  So we might be possibly forming that by oxidation with potassium permanganate.  And we don't know how much of that is down there.  

So there are many more issues in this letter, and you may want to review the letter and then, you know, you may have questions or something like that to ask us about that.  So right now I will take questions on everything but the issue of radionuclides and Michael's comments on that.  And then he can get up and explain his situation and take questions on it.  

So do you have any other questions or comments besides on this area?

MR. MUNOZ:  This is not related to that.  It is related to the final minutes, the copy that you provided to us.  There is the comments there about getting letters authorized that the committee writes in between meetings and the concern of not having the appropriate quorum available to get those letters signed by Whitney.  My recollection is that a few months back we actually discussed that, this issue, to try to facilitate that so that any letters that may need to go out in between meetings are actually able to go out without having to wait for the full CAG to meet.  And that was one of the reasons we have the Executive Committee.  Could we clarify that? 

MS. ABBOTT:  The minutes of 9‑21?

MR. MUNOZ:  Yes.  For the Toxics Committee.  We can discuss it later, but it is one of the Toxics Committee items that they discussed at their meeting.  

MR. LINSLEY:  Fortunately, we have more meetings, and I think some of these other letters are going to originate there.  And they may have signatures of other people besides either the Toxics Committee or Whitney.  So some of that is just being resolved by more activities by more committees since two months ago.  We are trying to expedite everything, but we realize the Toxics Committee can't do everything.  So I think the fact that we have the Executive Committee and some of the other committees active now is going to basically take over that workload and spread it all out.

MR. DOTSON:  I think it is appropriate for some of the committee work that is ongoing.  I don't necessarily see the entire CAG having to approve a letter before it goes out.  That is the work of the committee itself.  But if it were a letter coming from the full CAG, I think then it would be appropriate to have approval from the entire CAG to get it out.

MR. LINSLEY:  When it originally started ‑‑ 

MR. DOTSON:  I don't want to censor the work of the committees. 

MR. LINSLEY:  We were forced to work through committees to generate approval in letters rather than through the CAG.  That is another thing that is good to see, that we have a quorum tonight.

MR. DOTSON:  One of the things that has happened over the last couple of meetings is there has been some discussion after people have left.  But we fully expect everyone that comes to the meetings to stay.  And a couple of times a couple of individuals have got up and left the meeting and left us without a quorum.  And our work is too important to leave, say, a couple of minutes before the ‑‑ before we finish our business.  

So if we could ask everyone to stay until the meeting is over, that would definitely facilitate our work.  But at the same time we can't hold up progress simply because a couple of individuals decide they are frustrated with the way the agenda is moving and get up and leave.  At least that is my personal assessment. 

MR. BLUM:  Since we are going to have, actually, a draft letter to discuss during the process committee report, may I recommend that we get back to the topic and pick this up again later?   

MR. LINSLEY:  Well, I am going to introduce Dr. Michael Esposito who is retired from Lawrence Berkeley Lab who is an expert on radionuclides to talk about why he responded the way he did to this also. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much.  I can't tell if the microphone is still on.  What I wanted to talk to you today about is not only about the evidence of a 238 uranium release at the Harbor Front tract site, but I would also like to talk a little bit about why we would like to know these values for uranium and radium.  Despite the fact that the values are small, we are not dealing here with a uranium mill.  We are not dealing here with a nuclear fuel site.  We have a different sort of industrial site.  It's important to know these values and to know them accurately because uranium and radium and radon, which is the product of radium, are carcinogens for which there is no non‑harmful dose.   

Now, the values that we see may be below the maximum contaminant level for that particular radionuclide, but we can't rest on that laurel because eventually we have to assess the total carcinogenic risk for a particular site.  And that will involve considering the individual risks attributed ‑‑ contributed by the metals, the organics, the radionuclides, and everything else that I forgot that is carcinogenic.  That will determine our response to that environment.  So we can't ignore low values.  We can't simply say, "I know that there is a beach in Rio De Janiero where the level of radium is 50 times what it is at Booker T. Anderson Park."  That is fine.  We are not dealing with that beach, and if you go there don't sit on it.  

So this is the reason why I focused on these data.  Now, let me tell you my conclusion before I discuss some numbers.  The Uranium 238 and the Radium 226 data in the Weiss report were done by the cheapest, fastest, least accurate method.  That method was devised before 1976, in about 1970.  It is a quick and dirty method to find out where you are.  It is not an analytic method that would be useful to anyone who is inquiring what is the total carcinogenic potential of a particular site.  For example, in the set of data Joyce Adams complained very early on.  This is a Weiss person.  "The data are not sufficient.  We need to do better."  Unfortunately the data that she got back was no better.  I don't know why that is because the letters, the exchange doesn't tell us.  

The levels of inaccuracy are so high that the footnotes in the table have more information than the data.  Looking at a lot of radiochemical data over the years, I know when I see extensive footnotes that something has gone seriously wrong.  The appropriate reply from Weiss regarding this data to the Department of Toxic Substances Control would have been these data are preliminary.  They tell us we are not dealing with contamination at the level of 10, 20, 30 picoCuries per gram of uranium or radium or per liter of water if that would have been straightforward.  Instead what we have is the dance of the seven veils around it, it could be that, it could be this.  That is very disturbing because DTSC has the right to know that the data are insufficient.  And it didn't come out until the last CAG when the admission was made that the data are preliminary.  I'm very concerned about this.  DTSC is entitled to the data and so are we.  Now ‑‑ 

MS. PADGETT:  Michael, can I interrupt?  I think for some people in the audience it might be helpful if you walked over to that map behind you, the next one over, the one with the pink, yes, and point out the Harbor Front area, which is in the middle of the pink.  It is not the pink area.  It is ‑‑ that is the area we are talking about.  For the people in the audience, that's where the radionuclide samples were taken. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  That is where the radionuclide samples were taken.  And I will point out they were taken from the place which is downwind of the major suspect place for radionuclides.  We don't expect to see a lot of radionuclides here necessarily, certainly not the most.  But we may expect some because upwind was a fertilizer plant with kilns which release fly ash containing uranium.  All the phosphate fertilizer plants release fly ash containing uranium.  That we know from 50 years ago.  

But in the data that we received, what we have, unfortunately, is a set of uranium data which is very preliminary, let's say, to be generous, and radium data which is, in the main, acceptable but a lot of problems.  What happened in the interim between Joyce Adams asking for better data is that important samples were lost.  The samples from the deep‑water wells were lost.  They were lost because they were over six months old.  You can't keep well water that long.  Bugs grow in it.  And you can't put preservatives or acid into these samples because it changes the equilibrium between the stuff in the solution versus the stuff in the particles.  So they lost those samples.  One has to go back and get them.  

Now, the narrative is more disturbing than the data at the beginning of the report.  And I am ‑‑ I will get to that after I tell you about the U238 release.  And let me say that these data are preliminary.  But they are the best you can do with what we have.  So we did it.  And it goes to this issue.  Barbara Cook chose Booker T. Anderson Park as a control area for soil ‑‑ 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

DR. ESPOSITO:  ‑‑ as a control area for soil for two reasons.  One, it was available.  We couldn't get samples from property downwind of the Harbor Front tract, which would have been the best site.  But it is geologically sufficiently similar to the Harbor Front tract site here.  The geology is the same so we can get the control data for uranium and radium.  

Now, how do you get control data?  Well, you measure the content of uranium and radium in the soil, but you do something else.  You compare the level of uranium and the level of radium in the soil.  In the main, for most soil, with some small exceptions, the level of radioactivity for uranium and radium will be the same.  The ratio will be one.  And the reason for that is Uranium 238 has been present since the formation of the earth, four and a half billion years.  And half of it has decayed in those four and a half billion years, so we have half as much as when we started.  

In the course of that time it has given rise to radioactive daughters, other faster decaying radionuclides, one of which is Radium 226.  By now the level of radioactivity for uranium and radium have come into what is called secular equilibrium, secular coming from the Latin, saeculum, meaning eons or ages, four and a half billion years.  So they should be the same.  And when they are not the same it is because of human activity that has disturbed the ratio.  

The ratio changes when, for example, you contaminate the soil with uranium or contaminate the soil with radium.  You can do either.  If you are making fertilizer you can contaminate the soil with uranium.  If you are making luminous watch dial paint for your Mickey Mouse watches, you contaminate the soil with Radium 226.  So you have four measurements.  I have my candidate control, I have radium, I have uranium, and I have the ratio.  At Booker T. Anderson Park the ration is 1.06.  That site is in secular equilibrium, and there is no lab evidence whatsoever that there has been any wind‑bourn contamination of that site by uranium.  So I take off my hat to Barbara.  Good choice.  

Now we look at the Harbor Front Tract.  At the Harbor Front Tract, if you take the average of all of the data for uranium, you find that in the place over the value for radium, the ratio is now 3.

MR. DOTSON:  Could you repeat where it is again, the site? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Okay.  The kiln ‑‑ this is the Harbor Front Tract.  This is the kiln, correct? 

MS. PADGETT:  That is where the super‑phosphate fertilizer plant was. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  We are downwind of that place.  We don't expect a lot of radium but a plume of fly ash contaminated the neighborhood.  So there is an added amount of uranium, on average, at the Harbor Front Tract on the ground equivalent to twice the central amount ‑‑ there has been an addition of twice the amount that is present at the control site of the park.  In other words there is 3 times as much uranium.  The park is okay.  The park is in equilibrium.  The Harbor Front Tract has been apparently contaminated.  

Now, you can say these are preliminary data.  And I agree with you.  Okay.  Get better data and I will eat my words.  But what you can't say, you know, the Harbor Front Tract, maybe it is not geologically the same as Booker T. Anderson Park.  If you are going to say that, you have to go to a place nearby that you think will serve as a control and show me that that controled area has twice as much uranium as Booker T. Anderson Park.  You can't just pull it out of the air.  

Unfortunately, in the Weiss report, that's what they pull out of the air.  "Oh, don't worry about it.  It's probably a geologic anomaly."  Well, there ain't no evidence of a geological anomaly.  It is either ‑‑ Booker T. Anderson Park is either the control or it is not.  One thing I will tell you, it is an excellent control for the kind of dirt it is and land it is because it is in secular equilibrium.  Another point, and I am not going to go into detail about this, but I want you to know.  The analysis of the uranium content and radium content of the water in wells.  

Those data are among the worst.  And in some you couldn't measure the uranium content.  So the Weiss report says well, assuming secular equilibrium, the uranium is probably the same as the radium.  Would that it would be true, none of us would be trying to measure uranium content.  There is no secular equilibrium for water samples.  There is no secular equilibrium for water.  It doesn't apply to water.  It applies to soil with rocks in it that have been around since the beginning of time.  

Uranium and radium have different solubility.  You almost never find a soil and water sample in which the two aren't off from one another by at least a factor of 2.  Moreover, if you filter the water samples ‑‑ which they did to make them more clear so they would be easier to analyze, what you throw away on the filters are the particles in the water that carry radium.  Radium and uranium stick to particles.  So the filters were not analyzed; the water was.  We don't know the radium content of that water, nor do we know the uranium content.   

I hope that DTSC has somebody in‑house who knows how to interpret environmental radiochemistry data because, for sure, Weiss is not doing a great job.  It pains me to say this.  I don't like to criticize people who write reports.  I know how hard it is.  But it is simply not true.  There is no secular equilibrium for water.  Okay.  So I think we need better data quicker.  Thank you.  I'll take any questions.

MR. DOTSON:  I notice that, you know, Barbara Cook and Dr. Brunner, as you began ‑‑ as the presentation began, got up and kind of went outside.  And I was wondering if they were coming back in or did they hear the presentation.

MS. ABBOTT:  They missed the whole report.

MR. BLUM:  It will be written down and presented another way.  Thank you.

MS. ABBOTT:  Is there a microphone?  My question for you, Michael, is I think you had talked about ‑‑ I have two questions.  One is if there were a new control site, would that be ‑‑ is that something that we should request a new control site be offered up?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I don't think so.  I think at this point what the data calls out for is to do exactly what was mentioned at the last CAG; that is to duplicate it and get the data with greater accuracy and we'll know.

MS. ABBOTT:  So there was another method for obtaining, and you guys already discussed that?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.  I actually put it in two of my reports.

MR. DOTSON:  Dr. Brunner and Barbara, we notice that you stepped out of the room.  And we wanted to know if you had any response to what Mr. Esposito has presented.  Or did you hear his presentation?  

DR. BRUNNER:  I didn't hear the presentation, but I had read the report.  I was going to talk to Barbara to get some other information.

MS. DOTSON   :  Information about his report?  Do you care to share that with us?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me summarize for you.  The point that I am making is I think the samples from Booker T. Anderson Park, on close examination, turn out to be a very adequate control because the radium and the uranium data are in secular equilibrium.  

Using that fact, I averaged the data for the Harbor Front Tract, and I averaged the data from the Park.  The preliminary average data, which is no better than the individual data themselves, which requires further elaboration.  This leads to this conclusion.  Others ‑‑ you can make any hypothesis you like.  I just analyze the data the way in which an environmental radiobiologist does.  I take the control data, I calculate the ratio, I look at the site, I calculate the data, I look at the ratio and I say, "There could be a release.  I wish we had better data."  That's exactly where we are.  

This is not a criticism of DTSC.  This is a criticism of the quality of data you received even though having asked for better data.  Now, I will continue talking until someone stops me.  GEL, the contractor, the general engineering laboratory in South Carolina, is a wonderful institution.  They do contract work for all of federal agencies.  They have every piece of instrumentation I ever dreamed of.  They are perfectly capable of doing anything that DTSC asks them for, Weiss asks them for.  But it is going to cost more than Method Hasl 300.  And I point out the reason that I would like to know is these values, even though they may be below maximum contaminant level, it is because carcinogenic risk for all of the components at the different sites need to be calculated together in order to know the overall risk.  And is that why it is appropriate.  

DR. BRUNNER:  I guess this is the question I had in my mind when I was reading it.  Let me ask him the question.  This is my basic question, you know, how do these estimated concentrations of U 238 in the site compare with background concentrations in the Bay Area, in California or any country?  That's my question. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  The shorelands of the Pacific Southwest California have the lowest level of uranium and radium in the country.  The values vary from, if you really get an estimate around the shores, around 0.2.  0.2. picoCuries per gram of soil for both radium and uranium because they are in secular equilibrium in this land.  

Booker T. Anderson Park is maybe off the shoreline.  The distribution of uranium in U.S.A. soil varies all the way from 0.1 all to way to 4, and in some special places as high as 15, 20.  It is a flat distribution.  The medium is about 1.0.  But to talk about this as if it meant anything, I mean, when someone says, "Well, on an average site it's 1.2.  Up at LBL it is 1.5," well, it's pointless.  The question is what is it here and what is it at the Harbor Front Tract.  That is my point.  I think the question is does it matter and what, if anything, needs to be done about it.  What needs to be done is calculate ‑‑ I will give you an example.  I am used to walking around a chalkboard.  

Let us just say for example, that at the Booker T. Anderson Park we found a level of radium, which is the same as at the Harbor Front Tract.  But at the Booker T. Anderson Park the level of uranium was about a third as at the Harbor Front Tract, which is three times higher.  Now let's talk about the risk.  What is the associated risk for that radium on the ground in both places?  It is the same.  The risk is not greater than the maximum contamination level for soil.  What it is greater than is the preliminary remediation goal.  

Now, we are not suggesting that DTSC is going to go to the Park and remediate it, but we should be aware of the fact what that means, that it is 40 times higher, which means that instead of a risk being one in a million, it's 40 times higher than that. 

MS. COOK:  The screening levels established for a compound.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  Right.  That means that the number of fatalities and morbidities expected because the dose response for carcinogens like radium is linear.  It is 40 times higher.  Is Barbara and her office going to be concerned about remediating the Booker T. Anderson site of radium?  Absolutely not.  It is secular equilibrium.  Nobody put it there.  Okay.  But if you are evaluating sites that are contaminated with other things, we would like to know that we have a cancer risk at The Harbor Front Tract of 40 per million already that has to be considered.  And then you will know what the total carcinogenic risk is, I think is what is the committee would like to know.

MR. DOTSON:  Barbara?

MS. COOK:  Well, you know, I have two questions.  One response is we have received all of your information and we are working it through with Weiss as to that.  But as I remember, and I will be the first to admit since I was not very with it the last month, being fairly sick, I thought you also felt you weren't quite sure doing the added more expensive testing had the value added.  So I am hearing something different tonight. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I never said that.

MS. COOK:  Maybe we need to go back and look at it and discuss that.  That is how I remember the discussion.  But we have your information.  We are discussing it with Weiss.  And the Department will issue a formal response to it.  As to how we handle risk assessments is we follow the USEPA protocol on how to do risk assessments.  That's how we will handle this and any other compound.  Another compound that is very common that is well above the screening levels is arsenic.

DR. ESPOSITO:  That is a concern. 

MS. COOK:  Yes.  So we will follow the protocols that have been established by USEPA as well as our department of risk assessment people how to handle it and manage it in the risk assessment protocol process.  Okay.  That is just the answer.  We are going to follow the process and the procedures that we are obligated to follow by law.  But, you know, let's go with one thing ‑‑ one additional step that goes with that.

MR. DOTSON:  I have a response.  We're going to cut the discussion off in five minutes. 

DR. CLARK:   Michael, did I understand you to say that ‑‑ you said that there was no secular equilibrium for the water samples and absorption.  If that is the case I guess the question that is directed ‑‑ the question I would ask is, you know, this is supposed to be an expert that DTSC is being in control of.  And you are saying that it's ‑‑ basically, he should know better than this.  How can we confide in this particular expert? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would respond a little differently to your ‑‑ I see three different levels here.  I see DTSC, I see Weiss, and I see GEL.  Okay.  My concern was that in the report that was prepared for DTSC by Weiss, that the person preparing the report was dealing with the data in a cavalier way.  You have control data, your customer has picked a central site, okay.  It was geologically similar.  You are supposed to go with that site.  Okay.  You can't play with the numbers.   

DR. CLARK:   That is not quite a response to the question.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I haven't finished.  The point that you made is that they said that they could infer a value of ground water based on the secular equilibrium, and that is patently wrong.  There is no secular equilibrium of a water sample.  Uranium and radium have different solubility in waters at different acidities and alkalinities.  And that's why you have to measure them. 

DR. CLARK:   That is one of my main points, that is that we have experts that the Agency has chosen that are we supposed to confiding in, and basically you saying there is reporting nonsense.  So this is one of the points that the community here in the area and other places have all said that's why we need our own independent experts, you know, because, you know, we are supposed to rely on the Agency experts.  And here you are an expert, and you are saying that the other experts, they should have known better than this here.  I don't ‑‑ I mean, this ain't no joke, you know, to be ‑‑ for someone who is supposed to be representing us, like the agencies and experts, that they choose to come in and basically report some nonsense.   

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have no private opinions on the matter.  I am relating to you what the experts in this field say about it.  If you look at the fourth edition of Environmental Radioactivity by Merrill Eisenbud and Thomas Gessell, it is the gold standard.  

DR. CLARK:   The other point was at the Harbor Front [Booker T. Anderson] site, there, if you are saying that that is a natural attenuation, and that because of that if you can't see, they're probably not going to do anything about it.

DR. ESPOSITO:  No.  What I think is that the best interpretation of the data is saying that the Harbor Front Tract site has received contamination of uranium which has caused the concentration of uranium at that site to be three times the level of the control site at Booker T. Anderson Park.  Now, I will be the first one to admit that I was in error being doubtful about the value of Booker T. Anderson Park as a control.  But I calculated the data out, and the answer is yes.

MR. DOTSON:  Ethel has a question.

DR. CLARK:   In the final end ‑‑ in the exposure is there any exposure to the site, or is there now or in the future any higher risk of contracting cancer. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I can answer that for you.  If that were the only carcinogenic impact of the site it would probably be below the level of concern for most agencies.  But it isn't the only carcinogen there.  And that is where uranium and radium are very particular.  Their effects are additive.  That's why radiobiology is so confounding, because we have a naturally‑occurring hazard.  It isn't as if you find benzene and you say that shouldn't be here.  Unfortunately in the case of radium and uranium, they are part of the earth's crust.

MS. DOTSON   :  So what would be the health effects?  And there should be ‑‑ I guess you would call it what, risk assessment, and what would be the health effects, cancer?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.  The principal health effect would be carcinogenics, and what we would look at is how much higher is this concentration of uranium than that for the preliminary remediation level.  The maximum contaminant is set at 1 in 10,000.  There is a 100‑fold difference we are willing to accept because we can't measure all the way down to the one in a million level.  That is the problem with the instrumentation.  There isn't an instrument available that measures as well as we would like, but we can certainly do better than we have.  There have been improvements over the past 30 years.

MS. DOTSON   :  So people shouldn't have been living in that air, because I found a document that it should have been a buffer zone in that area back in 1953.  So that coincides with what they were talking about.  The federal government was saying there should have been a buffer zone on that side of the track.  So if it is in that area, then it possibly is a little bit farther down going north, then.  Because I have some pictures ‑‑ on this picture that I got from the site that they gave me, and it showed the stats, how they were ‑‑ which direction they were going, and they were blowing in that direction.  So that means that if it was blowing in that direction, and depending how the wind was blowing it went further north, it could be northeast, whatever, like a circle.  Because I remember that is how the wind would blow, that it would be from the area where that ‑‑ what do you call it, the sites ‑‑ where they had all of that stuff.  

Okay.  The other thing is that I have the documents which I gave to Loni Hancock too, and I went over them again this week where they had the pipes ‑‑ the sewage was ‑‑ and it was a memorandum back in 1946, '48 or '49 or whatever, that they had the pipes were ‑‑ they were connected wrong.

MR. BLUM:  I just want to make sure that I understand, sort of a recap in my mind of what you were saying, Dr. Esposito.  And the main point I want to clarify is that you said that the Booker T. Anderson site is in equilibrium between radium and uranium because that's the way it is supposed to be.  Then you say over at Harbor Front site it's not at equilibrium.  We have a three to one ratio of uranium to radium.  And that points to perhaps ‑‑ or I suppose that is yet to be determined why that is, but perhaps there has been release of uranium near the Harbor Front site.  Would that be the conclusion you would draw?  I am not saying that is true, just asking if that is the final conclusion you would draw. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would draw that conclusion after a final analysis at a high level of resolution, yes.  There has been contamination.

MR. BLUM:  And then the next thing ‑‑ I understand that it will all get studied more, I am sure ‑‑ is that I would just ask myself to, as well as everybody else, just to keep it civil here, because it sounds like there is getting to be sarcasm in the air.  And if we could all keep it civil and stick with facts, that would be great.  Thank you.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.

MS. ABBOTT:  Whitney, we have two more people with questions.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  If we are out of time ‑‑ my question is a quick one.  It is just basically who was the one who hired Weiss? 

MS. PADGETT:  DTSC.  

MR. KIM:  My question is very related to that question.  Why is Harbor Front site only the sample site that DTSC did?  Did they do the surrounding radius? 

MS. PADGETT:  I can answer that.  DTSC asked Cherokee to do samples in Lots one, two, and three for radionuclides.  And I think that was done in May and the reports for those areas should be at DTSC now or recently.  They are still not there.  Okay.  So DTSC still doesn't have that data.  It was reported that it would be delivered in September.  Then it was reported that it would be delivered in October.  We are now in November, and we still don't have the data.  And I think where we are headed with this on the Toxics Committee and probably as the CAG overall, is that we are very interested in seeing what the data looks like from Lots one, two, and three on the Zeneca and Cherokee‑Simeon site to compare it to what we have in the way of kind of sketchy data in the Harbor Front neighborhood.  And once we get those two together I think we can start to have more of a point of reference about where we should head in the direction of going back and getting more data in the Harbor Front Tract. 

MR. KIM:  Why was Harbor Front chosen? 

MS. PADGETT:  Because it is directly ‑‑ it is surrounded by ‑‑ you can see it is that pink area, the Zeneca site surrounds it like a horseshoe.  And so the DTSC ‑‑ right, DTSC spent taxpayer funds to go out and see if there was any kind of problem in the Harbor Front Tract as it related to its situation next to Zeneca.

MR. DOTSON:  And the prevailing winds.

MS. PADGETT:  And prevailing winds and underground and the rest.

MR. DOTSON:  One final statement, Mike, and then we are going to move to Loni Hancock.

DR. ESPOSITO:  In the Toxics Committee report there was a concern raised about the use of potassium permanganate as a strong oxidant.  You will want to be aware of the fact if there is uranium present in soil or water that it will be mobilized by oxidation.  The oxidized forms of uranium moves through aquifers at quite a rate.  So it is important to know what the levels are because they will be on the move once they are oxidized.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  We are going to introduce Assembly Woman Loni Hancock and see if she would like to make any statements.  She has made sure her staff person has been at every one of these meetings.  And this is very important for us.  

MS. HANCOCK:  You all know (inaudible) and Dr. Clark.  There is actually quite a lot of people I know at this table.  And thank you for letting me just share a few thoughts with you.  I am going to say, Whitney, I have known you for a long time.  We go back a long way.  But I was driving back from Sacramento this evening about the time of your meeting, and I have been wanting to check in for a long time about the progress of the CAG.  

You know, this started a long time ago, three years ago, really, when I was alerted by DR. Brunner, who was alerted by Sherry Padgett.  And I thank you both so much for that.  Really, Dr. Brunner called up and said that he was concerned with some of the things he had learned from Sherry about the safety of the cleanup and what could I find out about it and how could I get involved.  And I did that, and that led to our convening a formal public hearing of the State Environmental Safety and Toxics Committee, and that hearing, in turn, which many of you may have been at and spoken at, led to a change in the lead agency on the cleanup from the Water Board to DTSC.  

And we chose DTSC because it had toxicologists, and it had human health and the preservation of human health as its mission and because it had a public participation and information process.  And none of those things were available at the Water Board.  I might say that the hearing also led to two bills that I carried.  The first one we couldn't get out of the legislature.  The second one that was passed by the legislature was vetoed by the Governor this year.  So it is very tough going on these toxic issues and it is, I think, very important that we log off successes and successful cleanup and particularly successful cleanup that involves a public participation process and that things move forward.  

Our goal here is a cleaned‑up safe site so that the community can then decide on what would be an appropriate end use.  There are so many challenges in dealing with this site.  I have actually another toxic site in my district out in Pleasant Hill that I am very, very concerned about that DTSC is working on.  And one of the reasons I am interested in this process is that that one started about a year ago, and the ‑‑ and they are almost cleaned up.  

So we ‑‑ I want us to move forward here with Zeneca with that same focus, if you will.  Now, what we have with the Zeneca site is some real challenges that I think are ‑‑ that are more than faced in other places.  We have multiple sites, multiple sites, the Harbor site, the University site we know now as well as the Zeneca site itself.  We have very complex contamination issues, and we have a very large and diverse CAG with different levels of expertise, obviously that you are hearing from the community and from the CAG itself.  So I just want you to know that my office is going to be here and we want to work with you and with DTSC in partnership to really move along this cleanup.  

I was really pleased to understand from Sherry and Peter and others that you are very close to reaching an agreement for getting technical and administrative support for the CAG.  I can't tell you how important and positive I think that is going to be.  I really strongly urge you to use these resources and any other resources, and if there is anything I can do to help get some, you know, let me know, because I do think that in order to be effective we are going to ‑‑ what I found we usually need over time is a shared information base and ‑‑ you know, because sometimes the weight of scientific and technical data and conflicting data sometimes can be overwhelming and then, also, just administrative support in sorting it out, the multiple sites and multiple contamination.  

So what you are doing is such important work.  And I really feel that it can be a model for the entire state because we know this is one of the most complex and difficult sites.  And I want to thank you from the bottom of my heart for stepping up to the plate and, you know, working with the County and with DTSC to get this to happen.  And I hope things, you know, are going to move forward in a very, very good way and that you will move forward with this contract and whatever else you can do and we can all do to support you in what I think we want to do.  So thank you.  And just keep up the really, really good work.

MS. DOTSON   :  I was told last week that I have maybe a year, maybe less or more.  But at any rate, I requested for you to do a waiver for folks that lived in Seaport that we would be able to be compensated.  So I have to hope that, you know, now that you are reelected that, you know, there be some urgency on that.  A lot of people are dying.  

MS. HANCOCK:  Thank you, and we will certainly definitely try to work on that.

DR. CLARK:   In regard to the cleanup, the site that you refer to in any other site, one of the things that should be considered is not only with this site but all of the cleanup sites, is that after monitoring or monitoring after the site is cleaned up periodically ‑‑ because what happens is that the reality of it is that all contamination that is on the site is never really cleaned up or never removed totally and completely.  

And so what happens over periods of time is the conditions of the contamination may be so deep that it rises up, you know, due to weather conditions.  And over a period of time, so where it has been cleaned up, according to some records or status, today or next year or two or three years or tomorrow, contamination has resurfaced, you know, and it may be even beyond the levels that it was.  That person over here in Richmond and the Harbor at the United Heckathorn site where that same situation occurred, where it supposedly was cleaned up, where EPA was the lead on that site, but then they found the contamination had resurfaced.  

And so ‑‑ which indicates to me there needs to be some monitoring afterwards to make sure that those sites are really cleaned up and that the contamination has not resurfaced.  And we think that we are cleaning it up and putting people out of harm's way, but really that was only temporary.  And people are still in harm's way afterwards.  And usually there is no monitoring that takes place after a site is supposedly cleaned up.  

MS. HANCOCK:  I totally agree with you.  In fact, that is one of the reasons we really wanted DTSC to take over the cleanup, because they do have the authority to come back and monitor, and we are going to need, once the site is cleaned up, for that to happen for as long as that is necessary to make sure or periodically, you know, however it works out, to make sure the other site, which I ‑‑ which is out in Pleasant Hill, you know, is a plume that is traveling.  So, yeah, you do have to keep looking because it can shift.  I totally agree.

MS. PADGETT:  Loni, I have a comment.  I am hoping that you will continue to put forward legislation in the next session in the same vein that you have in the prior years.  And I am hoping that the community will continue to support you in that endeavor.  

MS. HANCOCK:  Thank you so much.  I mean, I really intend to keep working on this.  As you probably know, we had a very strong bill the first year, and frankly we have very powerful opposition from the homebuilders association and other people, other very forceful players in Sacramento.  And we made the bill really a much more narrowly focused bill last year.  It was really just asking the state to inventory in one place all of the toxic vapor contamination, which is the kind of thing we have on the Zeneca site in one database.  

And we even have the support of the statewide board of realtors on that because they oftentimes have to go to the redevelopment agency here, a city there, a county there.  You never really know what is in a site.  But it is not in somebody's database.  The governor vetoed that.  We are going to really need to work together.  And actually some of the environmental dust descriptions were incredible helpful.  And all of you, I really will need your support to figure out what we are going to do.  And we will be back.  And ‑‑ 

MS. MORRIS:  I have a question.  I wonder how much we protect the environment when we dig up toxic waste in one location and haul it someplace up to some unsuspecting citizens.  The stuff they are moving here, they are hauling it someplace.  

MS. HANCOCK:  Where they are taking it, and thank God they are taking it because they weren't taking it anyplace before the DTSC got involved.  They were capping it over and it was going to sit right there until it leached into the bay and leached into the water and everything else.  And there was even a proposal to build housing on top of it.  DTSC, when they found the level of contamination, is taking it out of the ground, taking it in carefully monitored trucks to what we call a class one disposal site, which is a disposal site expressly made for extremely toxic substances.  

And this is, believe me, a great protection for this community, and it is something that we weren't going to have when I first got involved in the process. 

MS. MORRIS:  What is it doing for the community where it is being hauled to?  

MS. HANCOCK:  Well, class one disposal sites are carefully created for these toxic chemicals.  And, you know, we had these factories.  If people would rather keep it right here, just let me know.  If you want, if you want to be ‑‑ well, see, that is it.  I mean, like many things, as human beings we are now discovering that our technology got ahead of our ability to control it.  And we are trying the best we can to figure out what do we do with this stuff that we have deposited the ground and how do we neutralize it or get rid of it, take it away without hurting people, you know, any more than some of them have already been.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  We are going to have a short comment from Joanne, and then we are going to have to move to the agenda unless ‑‑

MS. TILLMAN:  What I wanted to comment about is I am a Seaport survivor, and I have eleven family members who have been affected and who have died from cancer.  And currently my aunt is in her terminal stage of her cancer.  My question at this point is the individuals who worked for Stauffer Chemical plant, I understand that the statute of limitation was waived in order for them to be compensated.  So I am asking you to keep it on the burner so that we can also do that for the survivors from Seaport, whether or not directly contaminated by living there, and also because the majority of them had gardens.  So they not only had the environmental factor, they had the nutritional factor.  And as you know, you take it and it does other things which cause problems in the next generation.  

So that I just want you to be aware that my goal is to work for compensation for those individuals who have died directly related to this contaminated site.  And then my other point is that I am skeptical of DTSC, and everybody knows that.  And I said it in meetings previously.  And so I just want you to know that too.  And all of our eggs are not in one basket.  And we want to make sure that we are doing the best for the community and not let a state agency come in and tell us this is this.  I am a skeptic because, first of all, they are working for the state, and then we just have to be sure that we are getting the best.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  

MS. HANCOCK:  There are two things here.  One is I understand why people are skeptical of government agencies at this point.  And all I can tell you is that in my experience DTSC has the most experienced, the most expertise and the most commitment to people's health.  And so given the resources that we have to help clean up this site, I am very, very grateful that they are here.  Now about the Seaport issue, let me just urge you folks, we are talking about cleaning up the Zeneca site right here on the water.  The Seaport survivors come and see me separately.  It isn't going to be helpful to the cleanup of the ‑‑ to that issue to have them merge at these meetings all the time because it gets people confused about what they are talking about at any given time.  It really ‑‑ it's a different kind of civil rights issue.  And please come to my office.  We will explore it and see what we can do. 

MS. DOTSON   :  So we get a waiver so we can file a claim?  

MS. HANCOCK:  Easier said than done.

MR. DOTSON:  We are not to discuss that here?  

MS. HANCOCK:  Talking about cleaning up the site. 

MR. BLUM:  I want to thank you for coming.  I have a business in the Harbor Front site, the Seaport area too, very close to Sherry.  And we remember the dark days when we were dealing with a different state agency.  And I thank Barbara, and I am glad that you as well supported that changeover.  Thank you and hopefully we will never see another project where people have to sign a waiver that they will never grow a garden because their houses have been built on land that it shouldn't have been built on.  Thank you.  

MS. HANCOCK:  You are right.  Thank you very much.

MR. DOTSON:  Thank you very much.  Now we will have the status report for the site.  Ms. Barbara Cook. 

MS. COOK:  Good evening.  I would like to go through mine fairly quickly because I asked representatives from BioRad to come tonight with regard to their pilot study.  I know we are late, so I will try to do mine fairly quickly.  And hopefully I hope I can do it well enough so there is not that many questions.  

At the Zeneca site, the ground water samples that we discussed in the past that are on the joint UC Richmond Field Station as well as the Zeneca properties, those samples have been collected.  There is still ongoing cleanup on the marsh.  The Department is reviewing the PCB removal that is in one area at the Zeneca property.  And we will make presentations on that as well as we will hold a formal public meeting associated with that when we do put that document up for review.  

We are going to try to do that double process so we are probably looking at close to the January time period when that is probably going to happen.  We have provided comments to the Zeneca group with regards to the sampling work plan that they have on the freshwater lagoons.  Those comments went out this week.  They have begun the treatability study, pilot study, and I would like to spend a couple minutes on what the pilot study is so that we understand that what a pilot study basically is.  

It is a test to determine whether or not this is even an effective treatment alternative.  We should just kind of knock out the feasibility evaluation because if it doesn't work it doesn't work.  We don't want to sit down and go through an assessment of selective remedy that ultimately doesn't work.  So quite often as part of the evaluations of different potential alternatives, a pilot study is looked at to see whether or not it works.  And that is why the pilot study that we discussed last month and the comments that have come in, you know, we have lots of different alternatives and lots of different ways of looking at it. 

With regard to instituting bioremediation treatment, there are two different types of approaches.  One of them was a bioremediation where you are providing for all purposes a food source that will increase the number of bacteria.  And there is more bacteria so they fight over the food and you ultimately win the battle ‑‑ the chlorinated solvents that are out there, they eat that as well as the food out there.  

So that is one alternative.  The other one being evaluated is chemical oxidation treatments, which is basically a chemistry process where you take this chemical with what is there and as part of the chemical reaction attached to it.  It goes that way.  The Department's preference is to look at instituting bioremediation because it is more normal, and because if it doesn't work you can do the chemical oxidation‑type.  

In the chemical oxidation, sometimes we found that if you use chemical oxidation, going back to the bioremediation it doesn't work because now you changed the environment.  And it sometimes prohibits the ability to look at the biology.  So the treatability study is being done now, and it is really an evaluation.  It is a short‑term project to find how it works ‑‑ this doesn't work, this works, this doesn't work.  And then it allows us the ability to throw out alternatives that aren't going to work, and we can move forward in our assessment and the evaluation.  So that is what is happening.  

One of the treatment technologies which was begun this last ‑‑ I guess it began the week of October 23rd, and those injections were basically completed this week.  It is the cheese whey.  And cheese whey is a product that actually comes from Kraft.  It is actually a food source product that comes out of them.  It used to be a waste product at Kraft.  And now they have moved into the green chemistry and moved that waste product now to a product that is used as a way of encouraging bioremediation.  That is one project that is being looked at, and we have a chemical oxidation process being looked at at a different location.  Each of those are going through along those lines.  

The Toxics Committee has provided us these comments.  And the department will be going through and responding to those in a broad‑based discussion along that issue, and that was one of the reasons I wanted to explain what a pilot study is versus a final remedy comparison.  

Also within the Zeneca site we received a third‑quarter ground water report.  We just received it today.  So Sherry, I know you want a copy.  Is there anyone else that wants copies?  Okay.  Two, three, four, five.  Lynn, you are taking down names?  Okay.  Joanne requests a copy, Ethel, Whitney, Tarnel and Sherry.  Friday is a state holiday, so we will send those out on Monday.

MR. DOTSON:  Do we have hard copies? 

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MS. DOTSON   :  I want paper hard copies.  I want paper copy and a disk.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  Let's see.  What's been happening in the next 30 days, they are beginning the ground water monitoring at the Zeneca site this week.  Last week it was our expectation and hope that we will receive the site investigation reports for lot one and two and the site investigation report.  Hopefully all of that will be submitted by the end of this calendar month.  I apologize for ruining all of your holiday days.  

So this report will include the data for soils and ground water that was collected in 2006.  The Harbor Front, what is new on that one is we are preparing fact sheets.  We have the comments that have come in from the Toxics Committee.  And so we will be looking at putting together a response to that one.  Also we, as I discussed earlier, we have received a work plan to install six ground water monitoring wells on the Business Park location.  

UC Richmond Field Station, the big topics that were discussed there is the Watershed Project actually did some work on the upland areas and that work is now completed.  They are doing maintenance work in the marsh areas.  Surface water sampling was completed.  That report should be coming in in 30 days.  The signage should be installed during the week of November 13th.  No.  I take that back.  This is the one where we need the BCDC permit.  Oh, this is on their property.  In the part ‑‑ Gayle, I understand a part that is on the Marina area, you are all still trying to get the BCDC permit that allows you to put those signs up on the Marina Bay Park.  Until we get that BCDC permit that cannot move forward.  

BioRad is beginning a pilot study for their project.  I will let them describe that and describe the company to you.  We have a fact sheet that we hope to have that will go out in tomorrow's mail.  I think a preliminary copy was actually handed out tonight for all of you.  As for Marina Bay Area, FM and Westshore, no activities occurred on either of those locations and area T, we are hoping that completion of the removal action will be completed in the next two weeks.  Most of the excavation is done.  It is now more compacting and bringing in the clean soil that needs to happen there.  

No activities occurred on Stege or Blair Landfill.  I think at last month's meeting I indicated there has been some interest in selling of that property.  So we are kind of putting everything on hold because the new property ownership is going to take on that responsibility.  It is best to work with the new property owner.  

Are there any questions?

MR. DURAN:The Blair Landfill, can you point it out on the map?  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. PADGETT:  Barbara, I have a question for the Toxics Committee.  We are trying to figure out our workload.  And if I understand it correctly, the Removal Action Workplan for the northwest corner of lot one will be ‑‑ 

MS. COOK:  The PCB area.

MS. PADGETT:  ‑‑ will be coming out in January. 

MS. COOK:  January sometime, yes.

MS. PADGETT:  January.  And then we have the site investigation report for Lots one, two, and three.

MS. COOK:  That is November, and let me add another one for January.  We are anticipating to receive the current condition report for the UC Richmond Field Station.  I think that is listed on here, and I apologize for not highlighting that.  The current condition report is expected to come in in January as well.

MS. PADGETT:  Current conditions for UC Field Station in January and the radionuclide data for Lots one, two, and three are still hanging out there?

MS. COOK:  It should come in as part of the current conditions report.  That would be part of that report.

MS. PADGETT:  If it comes in earlier we can review it when it shows up.  And we have the third quarter ground monitoring report that we are going to get this next week.  And I understand we are going to see BioRad here tonight.  So maybe we are going to get a report from them too?

MS. COOK:  What they have is a treatability study that has work claims that have already been submitted and approved.  They are going to describe what they are proposing to do.  So it is the test results that will come out as part of that which would be later on.  After that they are going to look at the installation in the November time period.  You are not going to see data coming out until a couple of months later.

MS. PADGETT:  Thanks.

DR. CLARK:   Is there any danger to any (inaudible) the products? 

MS. PADGETT:  We can't hear you, Henry.

DR. CLARK:   Is the cheese product that you indicated that is going to be used as part of the remediation, is that going to attract any rodents or endangered species or anything since the rainy season is setting in?  Is there any ducks or fowl or anything that is frequenting the area that may be at risk?  

MS. COOK:  The cheese whey and the HRC that is being done is actually pushing a probe into the ground basically 20‑plus feet in the ground.  Cheese whey is put into the underlying ground and on top, and so there won't be any impact to any wildlife.

MS. PADGETT:  Tarnel, you are next.

MS. ABBOTT:  I apologize if this was answered last month, but I do sort of remember there was yet another search in a different area for other barrels.

MS. COOK:  Yes.  I have a staff person from my Sacramento office that is going to help me do some better evaluation, and based on the results of that we will go back and look at additional work there because the rainy season is coming forward.  We probably won't be doing any type of field work until next April.

MS. ABBOTT:  I would again also urge ‑‑ and I don't know if it is considered part of the Blair, but the access trail, as you come in off of South 51st, the access trail, that first little bridge you go over, to the left of the bridge, if you are facing the Bay, there is at least one, maybe ‑‑ I don't remember, maybe two barrels.  At low tide you can see them.  I don't know what they are. 

MS. COOK:  That is not part of the Blair Landfill.  It is part of the Zeneca property.  I need to figure out who I have to talk to.  I don't know if it is part of the East Bay Parks easement aspects.  I don't know who all I have to try to coordinate that issue with to deal with those issues.  But, yes, I know what you are looking at.

MR. KIM:  In January there was a report for U.C. Berkeley. 

MS. COOK:  The current condition report?

MR. KIM:  Yes.  Would that also include uranium?

MS. COOK:  All the purpose of the current condition report is to recognize that historically they did a lot of things.  So what we are asking is for them to describe what the UC Richmond Field property was used for, the entire historical aspects of what the property was used for and an evaluation of what type of activities have been done, what the sample results were, what it means and then an assessment of what they feel are the data gaps.  

So they have not gone out and collected any additional samples.  They haven't collected anything that is looking at any data gap.  So it is just taking everything that they have done in the last five‑plus years and putting it all in one report so that we can ‑‑ we actually have it all in one location.  I am not sure if we are missing a report.  And that is what the purpose of it is.  

What will happen as a result of that, based on input, is we'll figure out what all the data gaps are, and then they will be required to conduct the necessary samples to try to fill those data gaps.  

MS. ABBOTT:  I am not a technical person, but I did go to the Toxics Committee, and Gina Hagg did prepare a response regarding VOC contamination remediation techniques, and I don't know if you received this.  I sort of think maybe you did.

MS. COOK:  I did receive something from her, and I ‑‑ we are going to put together a generic response to discussing it, and that is one of the reasons why we are doing a pilot study, not looking at remedy.

MS. ABBOTT:  I just remember one thing from there that I could grasp is because the soil is not all the same; it is different soil types and clays and whatnot.  That is why those ganglias can form.

MS. COOK:  What ‑‑

MS. ABBOTT:  You might not hit them. 

MS. COOK:  That is one of the problems with in situ environmental remediation.  The difficult problem is if you can get the chemicals to where the contamination is, it goes back to what Henry was discussing earlier, the need to go back and reevaluate, because quite often when you do that there is what was called a rebound.  All of a sudden what you thought you had treated is now coming back.  So it is looking at that, and that is why you have to monitor it over time, to see whether or not you are able to do what you thought you were able to do.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  Yes.  My question, Barbara and you verified that we are waiting for BCDC to provide a permit to provide the signage.

MR. DURAN:I will follow up on that Monday.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  And e‑mail us all so we have an update.  

MS. DOTSON   :  How long have they been used to cleanup contamination?  And why hasn't it been used over the years, and does it really, really work? 

MS. COOK:  In some locations, yes.  It ‑‑ a lot of it is dependent upon whether or not you have the right soil type, whether or not you can get the cheese whey to where the contamination is, whether or not you have naturally‑occurring bacteria that grows.  There is a lot of "ifs," and that is why it is best to do pilot studies like this as a way of trying to ‑‑ if it is not going to work, you know it is not going to work and you are not going to go through the process of approving something.  

Cheese whey as a technique has been used on sites probably for the last couple of years, not very long.  What it ‑‑ you know, the first one that was initially looked at was basically molasses, where you are taking water down to molasses, and you are injecting that into the ground, you know.  All of it is the bacteria like the cheese and like the molasses.  It is nice and sweet.  It is a nice sugar.  It makes them happy and so they grow, they make more, and in the end you are kind of tricking them because when the cheese whey goes away they are desperate and willing to eat the chlorinated solvents.  So it is a technique.  Yes, it does work, but if you have the right site conditions.  

It comes down to if you have the right site conditions.  And each ‑‑ and each technique has its own pluses and minuses, you know.  If you use some techniques, as the doctor suggested, you mobilize different chemicals, so you to watch all of those ‑‑ you have to watch all of those things and all the techniques available.  

So can I ‑‑ I would like to introduce BioRad.  I would like to introduce Mr. Joe Griebstein.  He is with BioRad.  

MR. DOTSON:  Can you give us any idea how long your presentation is going to take?  I am not pushing you. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  We'll try to keep it very short.  I was going to talk briefly about who BioRad is.  There is one page in the handout, and I will introduce Nancy Bice, our environmental consultant, and she will take you through the technical information.  That is another eight or nine pages, I think.  It can go pretty quickly.  So my name is Joe Griebstein.  I'm the environmental health and safety manager for Lifescience Group at BioRad laboratories.  That is a mouthful.  I will tell you what that means.  

BioRad is a local company.  We've been around for over 50 years.  It was started by a husband and wife, Dave and Alice Schwartz in Berkeley.  And Alice was a researcher at the University of Berkeley, and Dave was working with her to help develop some things that made the researchers there, made their work go faster.  So they started selling products to researchers that made the work go faster.  

He would purify things they needed to use to run their test and provide it so they didn't have to do that and they could focus their energies on doing the test they wanted to do.  That was the beginning of the company. 

What happened over 50 years is they moved out of the garage in Berkeley and moved here to Richmond at the 3110 Regatta site in 1957 that has been kind of the home of BioRad for all of these years.  Since then BioRad has moved and it is a worldwide company.  And we have about 5,000 employees around the world.  Most of those people still are here in the East Bay.  We have our large central corporate office and campus area in Hercules up the road, and some folks in Benicia as well.  

But I want to keep my talk about the Richmond operations and give you a sense of that site that we are going to talk about tonight, which is 3110 Regatta, and it is this spot right over here, at the end of the corner of Regatta and 32nd Street, and we also have another location here in Richmond at 3300 Regatta.  That is our worldwide distribution center.  So we ship all of our products from there around the world.  So if you drive over there, you will see two BioRad signs, the one on the street at the distribution center and right on the corner, the other site.  There is about 160 people between those two sites, and, as I said, the site we have been at the longest is the 3110 site.  

I asked here the manager of that site, our manufacturing manager Nancy Bice.  Do you want to stand up?  And we will both be happy to stay around and talk to anybody about the site or anything about BioRad later if you want to do that so we can keep things moving.  And just to give you an example of the products we make is we make test kits for diagnostic labs like Mayers and Quest and Kaiser.  So if you had a diabetes test, chances are it is one of our tests.  

We make materials to help purify pharmaceutical products.  One of the big products that comes out of the plant is used for people to make insulin, to purify the insulin so they can make inhalable insulin.  We do a lot of things for researchers, but you generally won't see our name on things.  We help them do what they do.  We don't necessarily provide you a service directly.  So that is really all I wanted to say about us.  

Let me bring up Nancy Bice, who is our environmental consultant, and she will talk about the technical aspects of what they are doing with the treatability study.

MS. BICE:  Thank you.  I am a consultant in Oakland.  I have been in this business since 1983.  I have been doing ground water, air and soil remediation in the Bay Area since 1982.  I have a degree in geology and a degree in engineering from UC Berkeley and have been working in the Bay Area my whole career.  

Hopefully everybody has this handout.  I am going to talk right from that.  And the first thing I am going to talk about is this map, the third page.  It just shows you where our site is, and as Joe pointed out, it is the smaller of the two BioRad sites over there.  Meeker Slough runs along the south edge of the site.  It is not shown on this map, but it does define the southern boundary of the site.  

If you look to the next page entitled Environment Overview, just to give you a little bit of the history here, we started working with Joe back in 1986 and looking at the processes of the plans and what the environmental impacts might be.  And we were working with DTSC throughout that whole time frame.  We have now, based on all the data we have collected, found that there is contamination of chlorinated solvents, mostly chloroform, in the soil and ground water at the site.  The soil ‑‑ 

MR. DOTSON:  What is the source of the contamination?  Was it your processes or was it there before you came?  

MS. BICE:  It is associated with BioRad's use of the solvents onsite, yes.

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  We used to use chloroform in the containment of the soil.  We stopped using chloroform on the site in 1989.  

DR. CLARK:   Hold on just a minute.  Isn't chloroform carcinogenic?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  I am not sure the best way to answer that, but it is in the fact sheet coming out.  There is information on chloroform.

MR. DOTSON:  His question will be addressed in the presentation?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  I am not sure the best way to answer.  Chloroform is a chlorinated solvent.  And it used to be used at the site to purify some materials.  And as chlorinated solvents, it has health concerns.  
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  If you look at the fact sheet, there is a little bit of a description of chloroform.

DR. CLARK:   Do you know, has the chloroform spread off the site? 

MS. BICE:  If we keep going here, most of the contamination is confined to the site itself and specifically in the soil.  The area that is contaminated is in the area where chloroform was stored in solvent tanks and beneath the concrete slab of the building where it was used.  So it is very localized in the soil.  It has gotten into the ground water, and it has moved with the groundwater in the ‑‑ towards the Bay, basically, towards the south.  And as this shows the soil is impacted to a depth of about 10 feet.  And that is where the water table is.  It is located at about 10 feet.  That is where the ground water contamination starts.

DR. CLARK:   How do you know that the groundwater contamination hasn't spread to the other side of Meeker Slough beyond a certain radius?

MS. BICE:  I am going to get to that.  There is a map that shows that.

MR. DOTSON:  I am sorry for establishing a precedent of questioning the presenter.  We are going to let you finish the presentation first before we entertain any questions.  

MS. BICE:  The ground water contamination extends to a depth of about 40 feet, and there is a map that follows this next slide called "Impacted Area."  And that map shows you where the contamination is and generally where the contamination is and also the ground water contamination.  This map is flipped from the last one on this map to the north.  It is to the right on the figure.  So Meeker Slough is on the left‑hand side of the figure.  And you can see that ground water contamination goes from the plant area toward Meeker Slough.  And that is basically the general direction of ground water flow.  

We have done a lot of work in the area, and we have defined that area.  We were concerned that ground water could be contaminated on the other side of Meeker Slough.  So we did a lot of work on the south side of Meeker Slough, and we found no contamination.  We know that it does not go under the slough and across to the other side.  

We've now found low levels of chloroform and other low levels of chlorinated solvents in Meeker Slough seasonally.  In the springtime we see a little bit more.  In the summer and winter we see very little.  But that is the reason we are cleaning up the site, and there is a potential impact to Meeker Slough.  

So if you go to the next slide after the figure, it talks about our pilot study.  We are going to use an old‑fashioned remedy here.  Because we are so close to Meeker Slough, we did not want to use any technology where we were injecting things that could potentially impact the Slough.  All of the technologies we are considering for the site are ones that pull contaminants out rather than inject positive things in.  And that is just because of our particular situation being so close to the Slough.  

We are going to be pumping the ground water out and treating it in carbon filters and then discharging the water to the sanitary sewer.  During that time we will be very closely monitoring Meeker Slough to make sure we don't have any negative impacts and we don't reduce the water levels in the Slough or affect it similarly.  And we will also be monitoring the ground water to see how well we are doing as we go.  

The next slide talks about our progress, and we are installing our wells now.  We have some of them in and are installing the rest of them this month.  We are planning to construct a treatment plant in December and hopefully get the system up and running in January.  We are going to be running it for six months.  As I said, while we are running it we are going to be monitoring the impacts.  We are going to be looking at alternate treatment technologies.  The carbon technology is very expensive, so we are going to be trying out, seeing if there is any other treatment technologies that might be better.  So that will be the focus of our study.  

And as this slide points out, there will be a fact sheet summarizing the results of our pilot study once we complete it.  The next slides shows you a picture of ‑‑ it is really just a schematic of what the treatment system will look like.  It is just a series of carbon tanks.  And by flowing through the carbon and water, the solvents are removed from the water and the water is clean when it comes out the other side.  

The last slide shows you our schedule.  We are monitoring both the groundwater and the surface water in Meeker Slough on a quarterly basis.  And we are reporting all those results to DTSC on a quarterly basis.  Once we finish the pilot study we will be looking to work with DTSC on establishing a final remedy for the site.  And obviously there will be public input on that when we get to that point.  So that is it in a nutshell.  Any questions? 

MR. MUNOZ:  There was a question about ‑‑ I have a question about the water cleanup.  When it is coming out of the other end it is going to be clean water before it goes into the slough?  And you mentioned you are going to be doing monitoring of the quality of the water before it goes into the slough.  How often will you be monitoring the quality of that water and what's the history in using this in the reliability of getting the water cleaned up?  

MS. BICE:  We are not going to be discharging anything to the slough, just to make that clear.  We are going to be pulling the water out of the ground and treating it and discharging it to the sewer.  BioRad already has a sewer connection for their existing plant.  We are just going to be adding clean water to their sewer discharge.  

This technology is very well‑accepted for this purpose of preventing chemicals from migrating beyond the extraction wells.  It is not as good for final cleanup.  And so we may consider in the future some additions to this technology to get to the point where the site is truly clean.  But it will help the migration of water towards the Slough, which is the main goal for now.  And then it will give us some time to look at some other things, and, you know, we just don't know yet what that is going to be.  

But it is a technology that EPA says if you are going to do this technology you don't even have to get our ‑‑ you don't even have to look at other technologies.  They call it a presumptive remedy because it is presumed to work.  Everybody knows it will work for that intended purpose.

MR. DOTSON:  Yes? 

DR. CLARK:   I have a couple of questions.  First of all, you mentioned the cleanup levels.  Certain levels of contamination here, are they above any levels of concern that would pose a threat to public health and safety?  Because there are no references to any comparison here.  You just say up to a certain level, you know, without knowing whether that is above any level of concern to public health and safety.  You know, a person really can't tell that, for one thing.  

MS. BICE:  The levels in the ground water are above both the state and federal (inaudible).  So you wouldn't want to drink it. 

DR. CLARK:   Okay.  Another question is in regard to the carbon process there.  After you use the carbon, after you do the process, is the carbon considered hazardous waste? 

MS. BICE:  The carbon gets sent to a regeneration facility.  So it is basically ‑‑ the contaminants are removed and then it is reused.  I don't know exactly the details of that process, but I do know it is basically a recycling process that happens. 

DR. CLARK:   Wouldn't you say that the water ‑‑ when it goes through the carbon process, comes out clean, and you discharge it into the Bay through your regular permit, what actually do you mean by that?  Is the water monitored for a certain level, because as far as I am aware there is nothing that is really clean, you know.  There are levels of contamination that may be so low that it is considered clean, but there is nothing that is zero clean.  So that is a misnomer there.  

I know we use those terms in society, but is that really not the case.  So are you referring to the fact that it is ‑‑ the levels or whatever in there is so low that it is written off as clean?  

MS. BICE:  Right.  It is below the level that we can measure.  So this water will be run through these filters until it is below the level we can measure, and then it will go to the sewage treatment plant where it will also be treated the way all of our sewage is treated and discharged the way all of our sewage is treated.  

 MR. SCHWAB:  First of all, on the third page of your fact sheet here it lists other contaminants other than chloroform.  Is this process intended to take these out as well? 

MS. BICE:  Yes.  

 MR. SCHWAB:  So what you are proposing will deal with everything you found so far?  

MS. BICE:  Right. 

 MR. SCHWAB:  Next question, maybe Joe for you, you are being required to do this.  This is being mandated for you by the DTSC? 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Correct.  We have a consent agreement with the DTSC. 

 MR. SCHWAB:  They asked you to monitor what was being produced by your facility, you came up with the results, and this is a legally‑mandated procedure you are going through? 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Yeah.  We have a permit through DTSC for a specific thing we have to do at the site that triggers a phase one site assessment that is essentially the historical review of what we have done at the site.  We did that and DTSC said, based on what they told us, "We would like you to do some sampling."  We asked Nancy and her company to do that sampling for us and since about '97, I think we have been doing various rounds of sampling trying to understand what is under the ground and what level it is and where it is and what we should do about it. 

 MR. SCHWAB:  This is just out of curiosity.  What is this costing you to do this? 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Well, we have about a million dollars committed to this at this point.  We have spent about half of that.

MR. DOTSON:  Go ahead.

MS. ABBOTT:  On your ‑‑ the map, the little detailed map, if we are holding it where it says, you know, so it says Impacted Area, is Meeker Slough at the bottom of the page where it says "line ditch?

MS. BICE:  No.  Meeker Slough is on the left side of the page.

MS. ABBOTT:  Thank you.  My question is regarding the soil contamination.  Are there people being exposed to these very volatile chemicals?  

MS. BICE:  One of the things we did early on in this process was look at the vapor intrusion risk associated with these chemicals in the soil.  And under a house this would be the problem because of the site of the house and because of the ventilation rates in the house.  But because of the size of this building and the ventilation rates in this building it came up fine.  So the soil is being cleaned up really to protect ground water.  It is not an unacceptable vapor intrusion risk.

MS. ABBOTT:  There is some vapor ‑‑ I mean, there is some risk, but ‑‑ 

MS. BICE:  Below (inaudible), which is the value we all use.

MS. ABBOTT:  Thank you.

MR. ALCAREZ:  My name is Rick Alcarez.  In 1977 I worked at BioRad doing a remodel.  And during that period I noticed that there was ‑‑ all the lab tables and all the metal tables and whatever you want to call them were all connected to the domestic waste at that time.  One question before I get started, Bill Beckman, was that the old property owner there?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Who was that? 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Bill Beckman.  They made stainless steel instruments. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Are you sure you are talking about the 3110 site? 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Yes.  In Richmond.

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  We've had other sites in Richmond over the years.  We had an 803 Wright facility.  We have had other facilities.  There was one or two facilities on Harbor Way.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Right.  I also ‑‑ during that period I tried to get the City inspectors in, and your company wouldn't let them in.  They said it was a government project that you guys were working on and they wouldn't let them in and then ‑‑ this is in '77. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Okay.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  Also you guys developed a test kit for HIV, AIDS.  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Yes.

MR. ALCAREZ:  And during that period you were doing experiments on live HIV, and your labs were still connected to the domestic sanitary at that time.  I corrected it.  I went to the City of Hercules and I ratted you off.  So I just wanted you to know, you guys aren't doing anything that ‑‑ 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  In '77? 

MR. ALCAREZ:  No.  BioRad was in '89, '90, '88.  And your experiments were going right down the drain.  They weren't connected to an acid‑based chemical waste system, marble system, charcoal system, nothing.  They went right into the sewers.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Just a simple question of your company. 

MR. DOTSON:  Hold on.  We are going to have a public comment.  I was going to let ‑‑ I was going to let you, but I was reminded.  We are running a little bit behind because of ‑‑ wait a minute.  I am going to let you talk ‑‑ because of the assembly woman.  So we are going to try and ask everybody to just hang tight and we will get everybody in.  And we have a couple of more comments from here.  And then we will go to public comment.

MS. DOTSON   :  That was the question that Rick asked about the HIV.  Wait a minute.  Hold on.  You didn't mention that a while ago when you first started off, of the type of equipment and stuff that you all make.  You said diabetes and for Quest and blah, blah, blah.  Why is it that you didn't mention that about the equipment for HIV?  And did you ‑‑ you made the virus in order to test your product? 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  No.  Well, first let me ‑‑ 

MS. DOTSON   :  How did you test it?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  I'll answer the first question.  I didn't mention HIV activity because we never did that at the 3110 site.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  You did it in Hercules. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  That is correct.  We had a biosafety level two laboratory which is a very secure laboratory in Hercules, isolated from the rest of the building.  In fact, you can't even get in it unless you are trained and you are wearing the right equipment, where they handled what is called attenuated virus.  And they would make test kits that don't actually contain live virus.  They contain some of the DNA related to HIV. 

MS. DOTSON   :  So that went down the sewage in Hercules?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  HIV virus would not have gone down the sewer.  Those tests are currently made in Washington near Tacoma.  So there is a large operation there that makes several hundred different standards for diagnostic testing.  And that is one of the ones they make.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Public comment? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  This is Michael Esposito.  Is your company the one that produces radiation source as sealed standards for laboratory use?

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  No.  BioRad doesn't make sealed sources or standards.  Historically the name of the company came from the fact that they made some biologic standards and they made some radioactive standards.  Actually, they are non‑radioactive isotopes.  Deuterium, heavy water.  And then later we sold some radioactive materials and some test kits that included small amounts of radioactive iodine and radioactive cobalt.  Both of those have very short half‑lives, and the radioactivity goes away quickly.

MS. TILLMAN:  I have a comment.  Joe, I am not sure who prepared the fact sheet, but I would like to thank you for including the glossary so that we could understand the terminology used in the ‑‑ in reference to DTSC.  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Tracy Craig and DTSC did that.  

MS. TILLMAN:  I appreciate that. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Thank you.

MR. DOTSON:  We are in our public comment phase now.  Anyone have any comments, public comments?  No public comment.

DR. CLARK:   I have a question.   

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  You have a question for us?

DR. CLARK:   On the fact sheet in the glossary you mentioned (inaudible).  

MS. PADGETT:  Henry, we can't hear you.  Can you stand at the mike?  Would you, please?

DR. CLARK:   On the fact sheet here, someone mentioned a glossary.  You mentioned the methylene chloride here that you are saying can cause skin and eye irritation; whereas that may be true, but from what I understand methylene chloride is also a carcinogen.  So when were you mentioning some of the other chemicals there, that they were cancer‑causing chemicals under Prop 65, why didn't you make a reference to the methylene chloride? 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Let me make sure I understand your question.

DR. CLARK:   Your glossary mentions some chemicals as being carcinogens, but nothing in methylene chloride, and it is also a carcinogen, among other things.  But no reference to it for any carcinogens in there. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  That is a fair question.  I don't know the answer to it.  As I said, we developed the fact sheet with DTSC.  I don't know if you guys have a comment about it or not.  

DR. CLARK:   Methylene chloride is bad stuff, so I am concerned. 

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Essentially it is an oversight.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  If there are no more public comments we are going to move on the agenda so we can try and get out of here on time, I mean in 20 minutes, 10 minutes.  We are going to have committee updates, administrative support committee, CAG proposal.  Peter Wiener? 

MR. WIENER:  Thank you.  I am Peter Wiener, and I have been trying to discuss getting administrative and technical support provided to the CAG and paid for by Cherokee Simeon ventures with some DTSC involvement as well.  And we are very close, but frankly the issues that we have to get us all the way there with Cherokee, they are with DTSC.  And I don't mean that there is a problem.  I just mean that we have to work it out because they have certain constraints because of something called the State Contract Act.  So they can't be involved in certain things we would like them to be involved with.  We are going to work it out.  We got very close today.  We are not quite there yet, because we do want some involvement by them, and they don't want to step over the line.  And there are some lines.  And I am not a state contracts guy, so I have to rely a little bit on their lawyers.  But I think within the next few days, tomorrow being a state holiday so we won't get it done tomorrow, but within the early part of next week we should get it done.  The idea is that the CAG will pick someone to help them with administrative support, and probably somebody different like an environmental consulting firm to help with technical support to help go through the documents and help frame what some of the major issues are and the administrative support for all of kinds of provision of both paper and electronic access that people have wanted.  It includes the minute‑taking, but it goes well beyond that.  

And all these people would report to the CAG, so they wouldn't really be reported to the DTSC.  They would report to CSV and they would report to the CAG.  Obviously we have to get some level of support, how much money per month would be paid.  And it's like a menu.  No matter how much money is paid per month, you are always going to be like a menu in a restaurant.  You don't order everything on the menu, just the stuff you want most.  So it will be like that, but it will hopefully be a level to take care of the real needs that everyone has.  I mean, that is enough of a report.  I can go into any details if you like.  We are just trying to work it out.  It is just kind of legal wording to make sure DTSC is okay.

MR. DOTSON:  Thank you very much.  Any other comments from the administrative support committee?

MS. ABBOTT:  I am extremely grateful for your help on this.  Thank you so much.  I hope we can get this somewhat taken care of because it is ‑‑ you know, it's just been a nightmare.  We are just, like, you know, volunteer citizens here trying to do this stuff.  We need the help. 

MR. WIENER:  One more thing, Kasassi is gone, but Kasassi works for Loni Hancock.  And I guess Wendel Brunner knows someone good at administrative assistance.  And I will follow up with the administrative support committee and see if there is someone that is interested.  We can find out.  I think there is really hope that we can get this done in the next month or two.

MR. DOTSON:  Nominations committee? 

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  Yes.  I will give this report.  We have our next meeting on November 15th.  Is there a mike that you can pass along? 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Where at? 

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  I will tell you in a second.  Our next meeting will be ‑‑ our next meeting will be on November 15th at 6:00 p.m.  We have been meeting at Pete's coffee house across from the El Cerrito Plaza, so what we will be expecting to do is come up with questions for interviews for the applicants that we have.  And we will begin interviewing them in December.  We have still ‑‑ we have six seats open.  We have five applications.  If there are any more interested people in applying for a seat in the CAG, please get an application from Nancy Cook and fill it out and return it to ‑‑ return it to the address on the application, I believe.  So we are moving along.  We expect to do interviews on December 9th and December 13th, and we will soon have these seats filled.

MR. BLUM:  I have a question for you.  One of the seats, I believe, was the Richmond Annex.  Have you gone to the Richmond Annex Neighborhood Council and let them know that you are looking for interested people? 

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  It has been in the Annex newsletter.  They are aware.  I believe we have, actually, a couple applicants from the Annex.  So I am sure we will have a representative here.

MS. TILLMAN:  Since a large amount of the Seaport survivors moved to Parchester Village, is there any way to disseminate information in that area for people that might be interested in serving on the CAG?

MR. DOTSON:  Yeah.  That is possible.  I can do that.  I can take on that responsibility.

MS. TILLMAN:  I would like to see the committee continue to be multiethnic, and that is my hope.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Any more comments on nominations committee?

MS. ABBOTT:  I have a question.  Could somebody just tell me what's with ‑‑ where are we at with our officers that ‑‑ we are still missing a vice chair.

MR. DOTSON:  Right.

MS. PADGETT:  I can answer that.  At the last CAG meeting we asked that the nominations committee look into it and prepare and come back and report.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  Actually, I see here I was not at the last CAG meeting, but Pablo gave me these notes.  That is one of the items we will be discussing.

MS. PADGETT:  You will come back and report next time? 

MS. MCLAUGHLIN:  We will.

MR. DOTSON:  Training committee? 

 MR. SCHWAB:  The training committee consists of me, Sherry, Joe and Pablo.  We met a couple of times.  There is really two main thrusts.  One has to do with understanding how the CAG process could work better.  We have asked Diane Fowler to help us set up more training there.  And the other side is more technical information around the issues we are facing with these properties.  And what we would like to do is have some sort of a training session happening every month on one or the other of those two areas.  Diane and I are working on that right now, and we would suggest that we do the sort of process training ‑‑ how many people in this group showed up for the CAG training that Diane did? 

MS. PADGETT:  12 of us.

 MR. SCHWAB:  There were 12.  But there were a number of us that weren't able to attend that.  If we were to set up another one, what is the interest?  Who would come?  I have a sense that it is worth us trying to do that and ask from there to see if there is more things that we can learn about how to use the process like this more effectively.  So I am going to come back after I talk with Diane.  I will come back with a couple of suggestions of when we do this.  I think it is important that we try to do that.  Joanne? 

MS. TILLMAN:  Yes.  What method will be used to notify all of the CAG members about the training, because the last time I was not notified.

 MR. SCHWAB:  Are you only accessible by regular letter rather than e‑mail?  

MS. TILLMAN:  Yes.  

 MR. SCHWAB:  Seems like we have a good system for people who don't get e‑mail.  We'll do that again.  

MR. DOTSON:  It might be good to e‑mail and mail and double up on everybody.  

MR. MUNOZ:  We have to plan the trainings as far in advance as possible so we can also announce them in the CAG meetings and give people plenty of time to schedule themselves for them so we are not just relying on e‑mail and snail mail but actually also announcing them here.  It is something that we are obviously working on.

 MR. SCHWAB:  Anything to add?

MR. DOTSON:  Sherry is ready to get out of here.  She keeps poking me.  Okay.  Anything else on training?  History committee? 

MS. DOTSON   :  We haven't met.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.

MS. TILLMAN:  Excuse me.  We had a telephone conference, but we didn't meet anywhere physically.  So we have been in contact.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Process committee? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Process committee has two brief items, one by me and one by Eric.  Mine is brief.  I wrote a letter to EPA, USEPA, regarding the deferral notice.  What was attractive in the deferral was the promise of technical assistance to the community.  Based on what Peter Wiener said earlier with another agreement that technical assistance would be promised there, or could happen there, I should say that EPA responded back in a negative fashion saying there was not a deferral of NEPA or federal process and that we were basically on our own from that perspective.  We may be better off based on what Peter was speaking to earlier in the agreement.  So this won't be resurrected unless and until we do not get technical assistance under the other agreement.  Is that a fair statement, Peter?  

MR. WIENER:  Yeah.  They didn't formally defer.  They just have a policy that they don't take jurisdiction as a state does, which is what happened here.  But their risk standards are usually from the ten to the minus fourth, ten to the minus sixth range, and they tend to have ten to the minus fourth range; whereas DTSC may tell people it has that range, but it is ten to the minus six range.  In short EPA will count its risk of one in 10,000 lifetime exposure.  DTSC wants it down to one in a million, generally speaking.  So I think that in terms of public health the protection is much better, generally speaking, with DTSC in charge than EPA in charge.  

It's taken many years to reach just the West Coast area of EPA to change the cleanup standards so they have a California‑only set of cleanup standards to reflect where DTSC is.  But, again, their general process isn't always effective.

MR. ROBINSON:  I agree with that statement.  The deal, the issue for me is whether or not we'll get this technical assistance.  And how it comes about really is unimportant, and I think that is the issue, Peter. 

MR. WIENER:  I think the whole idea here is to get not one individual in this area or that area but to hire an environmental consulting team or firm that has many different people and they can shift around among them depending on what the issue is so that if the issue is a volatile organic compound, they have someone who knows that.  If it is hydrology issue they have someone who knows that.  If it is radiation, someone knows that.  So they manage to mix and match within your budget and you get competent help no matter what it is.  

MR. ROBINSON:  The other issue is a letter that Eric drafted regarding signs and fencing.

MR. BLUM:  If anybody on the CAG didn't get one I have a few other copies.  I handed them out earlier.  But if anybody didn't get one, we will send one over to you.  I am going to make it very brief because it is very late.  Basically the Meeker Slough, we got ‑‑ this report, the conception remediation action plan, the marsh portion of sub‑unit 2B, Richmond Field Station, University of California, Berkeley, is the beginning, I think ‑‑ and I would love to be corrected on this by anybody who knows ‑‑ is the beginning of site characterizations, finally, for us, because in the process of trying to figure out what this whole site is and what is dangerous and what is not and at what level things need to be remediated, first you need to know what is there.  

So looking at this conceptual action plan there is some maps in there showing among the Meeker Slough areas where arsenic, mercury and PCBs are detected and at what levels.  So some of them are clearly on the Marina Bay side of the Slough in areas that are readily accessible as well as under the bridge where the Bay Trail comes up to Marina Bay.  And we would like to ‑‑ based on the data that we found here in the maps, we would like to get some fencing and some signage to keep kids and animals and people from casually strolling through areas that are heavily contaminated mercury, PCBs and arsenic.  

There are maps in the report, and the letter that I have is a draft, and I will complete it in the next few days and put the maps with it and such.  But I don't know ‑‑

MR. ROBINSON:  If we e‑mail it. 

MR. BLUM:  Okay.  The gist of the letter is just asking that we get signs of a kind that makes it clear that there is a danger there and that we get fencing where necessary to keep people from casually strolling off the Bay Trail or the trail along the Meeker Slough there and stepping into or playing in things that are fairly toxic.  

So we are talking about surface level from ground level to one foot.  So it is really right there.  We are not talking deep soil.  So anyway, this will be sent out soon, and I will e‑mail it and make sure we get approval before it goes out.

MS. COOK:  Could I make a comment and ask a question?  Can I ask who you are sending it to and can I increase the number of people you are sending it to?

MR. BLUM:  Sure.  How about once I finish with the letter I send it to you to with the list of people you were going to send it to?

MS. COOK:  I just want to make sure that BCDC and East Bay Regional Park is on the list of people you send it to because you can send it to me all you want, but I still need, like the City ‑‑ we need to go through these agencies and they have some very strong policies, and I am fighting, you know.  I can move ‑‑ 

MR. BLUM:  I understand. 

MS. COOK:  I just want to ‑‑ we will send you the names of who we would like to send it too.

MR. BLUM:  Absolutely, because I know that you are on our team and sometimes emotions get high.  And I apologize at the last meeting things got a little hot, but I am glad you are on our team.  And we want your help in getting all the stuff done.  

MS. COOK:  I will send ‑‑ I asked these people to actually come to this meeting, but they won't come. 

MR. BLUM:  We will go find them.  We have sort of a SWAT team.

MS. ABBOTT:  Maybe we need to invite them. 

MR. BLUM:  That is all I have.  Any other questions? 

MS. TILLMAN:  I have one, not in regards to your committee, Whitney, before we go to public comment.  I am not sure who I need to address this question to.  But I really feel that if you have a budget for the CAG, I really feel that we should not have to use a ‑‑ purchase our own supplies to, like, send out letters, use our own funds to provide postage, not receive dirty binders with reports in them.  I really feel that somewhere in this process there has to be a budget set up to handle this, because I was really insulted by the fact that they sent me a red binder, and it was ‑‑ it was used, and then I wasn't insulted because it was used.  But I was insulted because it was ‑‑ had black print all over it and so to ‑‑ that message to me was, well, this is all we could find to send you, and I really feel that ‑‑ 

MR. DOTSON:  Who sent you the dirty binder?

MS. TILLMAN:  DTSC.  I really feel that if we are providing services for Cherokee Simeon and DTSC they need to treat us right.  So therefore I am proposing that we approach them as we are to get more staffing, to also have supplies because they have ‑‑ I don't know.  They have millions of bucks.  Why are we using our money to type up letters? 

MS. PADGETT:  It is in the administrative services agreement.  It is in there.

MS. TILLMAN:  So how do we get to the money?   

MS. PADGETT:  We are getting there.  We don't have an agreement yet.  We just talked about it tonight.

MS. ABBOTT:  There is a draft that Peter wrote up, a draft contract.

MS. PADGETT:  I mailed you a copy.

MS. TILLMAN:  I have a copy of it.

 MR. SCHWAB:  The scope of work will include all of it.  We don't have it yet.  As soon as we work it out.  I think the money is going to be there.  We just have to get it.  And you guys have to decide what you want to use it for.

MR. DOTSON:  What I am thinking might be appropriate for the administration support committee to get back together for the ‑‑ and somehow we will get that figured out.

MS. TILLMAN:  I don't want to get another dirty binder.  Just send to the stuff in the yellow envelope and don't include the dirty binder.

MR. DOTSON:  Public comment?  Any comments from the public?

No comments.  Meeting is adjourned. ‑‑o0o—
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